
 

 

 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

JULY 19, 2016 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the July 5, 2016 Board of 
City Commission Regular Meeting. 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider approval of the monthly bills.  
2. Consider for approval replat of Lots 10 and 11, Block 1, Keidel’s 

South Heart Terrace Second Addition. 
3. Consider approval of We Got Hope games of chance at The Drink 

from August 1through October 1, 2016. 
4. Consider approval of pledge of securities reports as required by 

NDCC 21-04. 
5. Consider Police Department transfer of funds in 2016 budget. 
 

H. OLD BUSINESS: 
1. Consider signing contract with TL Stroh Architects for architectural 

services of Mandan Fire Station 3. 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Consider Young Professionals Network commitment to develop 

park concepts for expansion of Richard M. Longfellow Veteran’s 
Park. 

2. Lower Heart Water Resource District update on levee system 
3. Consider recommendations from the Community Beautification 

Committee (CBC) regarding advertising benches in the downtown 
area.  

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

July 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

4. Consider Growth Fund Committee recommendations: 
i. Storefront Improvement application for 122 E Main St by HB 

Properties 
ii. Updates to the Restaurant Rewards program overview 

5. Consider an expedited emergency fix for a segment of sanitary 
sewer that is not properly graded. 

 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Second consideration of Ordinance No. 1248 creating Chapter 26 
of the Mandan Municipal Code related to code enforcement  

2. First consideration of Ordinance 1245 adding and enacting Article 5 
to Chapter 18 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to abandoned, 
found, recovered and unclaimed property. 

3. Second consideration of Ordinance 1246 rezoning Lot 3, Block 1 
Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3rd Addition. 

4. Second consideration of Ordinance No. 1247 amending and 
reenacting Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances related to juvenile curfew. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. August 2, 2016 
2. August 16, 2016 
3. September 6, 2016 (5 p.m.) 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 
Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at Mandan City 
Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of citizens throughout 
the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are encouraged to make 
arrangements with the Board President or the City Administrator prior to the meeting. 
Comments should be made to the Board and not to individuals in the audience and be 
related to City operations and programs. The Board will not hear personal complaints 
against any person connected with the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the 
agenda, arrangements must be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board 
President. The Board reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public 
participation. The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 1 of 9 

The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on July 5, 2016 

in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.     

 

1.         Ceremonial Swearing in of Mayor Helbling and Commissioner Davis.  City 

Attorney Brown requested Mayor Helbling, Commissioner Braun and Commissioner 

Davis stand and repeat the oath of offices for the duties of Mayor and City 

Commissioner, respectively, for the City of Mandan, North Dakota.   

 

2.         Roll call of all City Commissioners:  Commissioners present were Helbling, Rohr, 

Braun, Davis, and Laber. Department Heads present were Finance Director Welch, Police 

Chief Ziegler, City Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public 

Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, Business Development & Communications Director 

Huber, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Principal Planner Decker, Assessor 

Shaw, and Building Official Lalim.   

 

Mayor Helbling extended a thank you to Mayor Van Beek for his 4 years of service and 

dedication to the City of Mandan.  He also extended a thank you to Commissioner Tibke 

for her many years of service to the City of Mandan as City Commissioner.  He extended 

a thank you for the successful 4
th

 of July Celebration to the City staff including the Police 

Department, the Fire Department, City crews, Rodeo Committee, Art in the Park 

Committee - MPO, Road Race Committee, the Parade Committee and many more 

committees and people too numerous to mention.    

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider for approval the minutes from the June 21, 2016 Board of City 

Commission regular meeting. Commissioner Laber moved to approve the minutes as 

presented. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

 

F.         BIDS: 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider approval of the following games of chance: (i) Catholic Foundation for 

the People of Bismarck Diocese games of chance at Prairie West Golf Course on July 18, 

2016; (ii) Dakota Zoological Society at Prairie West Golf Course on August 5, 2016. 

2.         Consider for approval plat of Big Sky 6
th

 Addition. 

3.         Consider approval of previously provided land acquisition support as local match 

for Flex PACE interest buy down for Family Wellness 

4.         Consider approval to auction Planning and Engineering Department’s 1996 

GMC Yukon.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 2 of 9 

5.         Consider employment contract between Board of City Commissioners & City 

Administrator. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Commissioner 

Laber seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members 

present. The motion passed. 

 

H.      OLD BUSINESS: 

1.         Discussion regarding new home construction first $75,000 exemption.  City 

Administrator Neubauer stated this item was discussed previously by the Commission on 

June 21
st
 and it was requested to bring it back to this meeting for further discussion. In 

the previous discussion, these options were presented for consideration: (i) Continue with 

the exemption as it stands today; (ii) Discontinue the exemption; (iii) Set a cap by 

limiting the exemption to buyers that take the opportunity afforded by the First Time 

Home Buyers Program; (iv) Allow the exemption for homes with a purchase price of 

equal to or less than a determined dollar amount; and (v) Phase out the exemption over 

time.  There have been discussions held with the Bismarck Mandan Home Builders 

Association.  He said that Dot Frank, Executive Director of the Home Builders 

Association is present and is prepared to discuss this matter.   

 

Commissioner Rohr stated that this issue has been discussed on several occasions 

including keeping in mind that the budget will need to be intact while having the funds 

available for 1
st
 time homebuyers.  He said that some of the homebuilders have reported 

that the exemption has made a difference to some home buyers to purchase a home.  He 

commented on the pros and cons of the program and encouraged discussion by the City 

Commission as to how to address the exemption for future purposes.   

 

Commissioner Laber stated that she views this matter as a subsidy rather than an 

exemption.  She pointed out that the schools, the County and the City do not receive 

funds when those exemptions are given vs. a new restaurant incentive and other 

incentives that are a stronger push for the community.  She recommended the program 

phase out by 2018 giving the home builders and others time to be aware of the program 

phasing out.  She would rather re-prioritize community funding and move this program 

off the list.   

 

Commissioner Davis commented that he is in favor of incentives for families who want 

to move to Mandan.  He said that a budget review is in line to see where the City is for 

the upcoming year with regard to state distribution of funds. 

 

Commissioner Braun stated that he utilized this program when he purchased his home 

and that the exemption provided the extra funds needed for him to move into his house. 

He was looking for clarification on how many new homes were built last year that 

utilized the exemption.  Administrator Neubauer reported that in 2014 (which are the 

exemptions for 2015) there were 128 residential units and 8 condo units that benefited 

from the first $75,000 exemption. For homes under $200,000 there were 42; between 

$200,000 - $250,000 there were 83; between $250,000 - $300,000 there were 45; 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 3 of 9 

between $300,000 - $350,000 there were 20; between $350,000 - $400,000 there were 

11; and over $400,000 there were 5.  Commissioner Braun summarized that the data 

reported by Administrator Neubauer show that people are using this program and that it 

does bring people to Mandan.  He said he would consider continuing the program and 

that he is leaning towards increasing the exemption amount.  Mayor Helbling stated that 

he knows of residents that have utilized this exemption that have moved from Bismarck 

to Mandan who gave that as a reason for moving here.  He said that to overcome what 

Bismarck has in place, the 1% tax for roadways, if it passes; Mandan will need to get 

over the obstacles and that the exemption should be left in place for now.  He 

recommended that we give it another 6 months and see how the figures come out.   

 

Commissioner Laber commented that the risk for that recommendation is that a budget 

needs to be developed for 2017 so if it is not reviewed for 6 months, we need to budget 

for it.  Mayor Helbling clarified that the big picture needs to be reviewed, not just this 

one line item on the budget.  He said he would like further information before making a 

decision now on this matter.    

 

Dot Frank, Bismarck Mandan Home Builders Association (BMHBA) came forward and 

stated that with the options available, the BMHBA would like to see the option as 

allowed by the state, be increased to $150,000.  She stated that the $75,000 currently in 

place goes back to the 1990’s and at that time the price of a new home was about 

$75,000.  She provided stats from 1992 wherein the average price of a new home was 

$54,000 and now in 2016 the average price of a new home is $236,000.  The incentive 

remains the same at $75,000.  She stated that housing should be treated as a high priority 

pointing out that housing is what fills the schools, restaurants and businesses with 

ongoing business.  She encouraged the Commissioners to think of this program not as a 

budgetary item but rather as an opportunity to grow the City of Mandan.  Commissioner 

Laber said that if this matter is delayed past the budgetary cycle, she would be 

comfortable delaying further discussion until the January 17, 2017 City Commission 

meeting.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to table this item until the January 17, 2017, City 

Commission meeting.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

I.        NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Consider approval of amendment to the Dakota Central Communications Joint 

Powers Agreement. Fire Chief Nardello presented a request to consider an amendment to  

the Central Dakota Communications Center (CenCom) current Joint Powers Agreement 

(JPA).  He said that a large portion of funding needed for operations of CenCom comes 

from the $1 dollar 9-1-1 fee collected from cellular and landline telephone users. For 

every $1 dollar collected and of that, 15% is retained by the ND Association of Counties 

(NDAC). The 9-1-1 Strategic Technology Planning Subcommittee met on April 20, 2016 

and voted to reduce the NDAC obligation of 9-1-1 fees from 15% to 10%, which will 

result in an additional 5% allocation of 9-1-1 fees toward the CenCom operational 

budget. The current CenCom JPA provides 15% of 9-1-1 fees to be allocated to the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 4 of 9 

NDAC and the JPA needs to change to reflect the proposed 10% allocation effective 

January 1, 2017.  He explained that the additional funding towards the CenCom 

operational budget should reduce the general fund obligation for the City of Mandan.  

Chief Nardello recommended approval of the proposed amendment to the CenCom JPA 

of 10% rather than 15% to the ND Association of Counties.   

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the proposed amendment to the CenCom JPA 

changing NDAC contribution from 15% to 10%. Commissioner Braun seconded the 

motion.   Mike Dannenfelzer, Communications Director of CenCom, explained that 

instead of paying the Association of Counties to the Statewide Wireless contract the 

money is kept locally.  This is an agreement to use that 5% towards the operating budget.   

 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion 

passed. 

 

2.         Presentation for information on Bis-Man Transit revised routes. Justin Froseth, 

Planning and Engineering Director informed the Commission of the proposed route and 

other changes to the Bis-Man Transit System.  The Bis-Man Transit believes there is a 

need for revisions to increase ridership and to make the system more economically viable 

for its customers. Roy Rickert, Bis-Man Transit Director, has spearheaded this effort and 

will present the proposed changes and why the changes are necessary. 

 

Roy Rickert, Executive Director of the Bismarck-Mandan and Capital Area Transit 

Systems, came forward to inform the Commission of the proposed changes for 

consideration, noting that the City of Mandan is a major stakeholder in the system.   He 

explained that there are two systems, but with separate services. The Paratransit System 

is a per ride basis and the Capital Area Transit (CAT) is the fixed route which runs 

whether there is one person or 20 people.  He provided statistics as to data on use of the 

systems and provided comparisons that have been done with cities of same population for 

ridership counts. The goal is to refinance funding and put resources where they are 

needed.  More money has been put into the Paratransit System than the fixed route 

system.  The need for revisions are due to federal and state funding cuts over the past 

year and that concern has been expressed about the sustainability of the public 

transportation systems provided by Bis-Man Transit. These concerns have prompted the 

organization to take a look at its structure and at how resources are dedicated in that 

structure.  These also included capital expenses stating that the life of the buses has 

passed 60% of their life expectancy according to the FTA and need to be replaced.  

Changes are expected to be made over the next four years due to the cutback in funds that 

were received in the past from state and federal sources. Those funds will not be received 

in the near future.  The size of the geographical footprint of the routes will be reduced as 

well.   Mr. Rickert provided a brief summary of the provisions for the following 

categories:     

      (1)     Fixed Route System Changes (Overview of Fixed-Route Service)   

      (2)     Route Examination – Black, Blue, Green, Red, Brown, Purple  

      (3)     Demand Response System Changes (Overview of Paratransit Service) 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 5 of 9 

     (4)     Overview of Extended and Sunday Services  

     (5)     Proposed Revisions Addendum 

     (6)     Review vs. Expense Projection  

 

Commissioner Davis requested clarification on the funding and ADA eligibility 

qualifications. Mr. Rickert explained the yearly formula funding cycle and that they 

might get it for 2015. But that they probably wouldn’t get it in the future. The ADA 

Federal eligibility is intended for those who ride the Paratransit System who are 

physically or mentally incapable of independently riding the fixed route service. It’s not 

to make it convenient or easier. It is intended for those who really need the service 

because they have no other way.  Commissioner Laber recommended that those who 

have questions or concerns attend the Bismarck City Commission meeting on July 12
th

 

where there will be a Public Hearing on these changes.  

 

Mayor Helbling extended a thank you to Mr. Rickert for the Bis-Man Transit 

transportation presentation and directed any comments from the public to call Mr. Rickert 

at his office for additional information.  This is an informational item only wherein no 

action is required by the Commission at this time.   

 

3.         Consider approval of Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for Sunset 

Booster Station and Distribution Control Improvements. Justin Froseth, Planning and 

Engineering Director presented a request for consideration to enter into an Engineering 

Service Agreement with AE2S for Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control 

Improvements.  He stated that this project has two main components and that these 

components have enough relatability to warrant one project and take advantage of 

economics in bidding one larger project.  In summary, he explained the two parts:  

     (1) The Sunset Booster Pump Station is located just off of Old Red Trail near 37th St. 

NW and serves the northwest area of Mandan. This area of the city is experiencing rapid 

growth increasing demands on the water system. There are periods of time when the 

pumps see high demands, and it was determined that an upgrade to the system will ensure 

demands are met. Phase I will allow the pump station to meet all current peak flow 

demands for the new growth areas.  

     (2) The growth in the Mandan system has resulted in new demands being placed on 

the distribution system. To provide better operational data and meet the growing service 

needs, the Instrumentation and Controls (I&C) system needs to be upgraded to match 

I&C upgrades that have been done in the Water Treatment Facility improvements. The 

water system demand increases have created the need for the pump stations, meters and 

check points to operate in a more complex manner in order to accurately monitor and 

adjust system variables. The five remote pump stations and reservoir sites currently in 

place are not properly equipped to handle the new system challenges. This project will 

upgrade the current I&C equipment and integrate it into the overall system. 

 

Director Froseth said that AE2S is already familiar with our facility and systems needs 

that will be addressed within this project. They were also instrumental in applying for and 

receiving a State Water Commission (SWC) grant for this project at 60%. AE2S was 

selected earlier this year as the water system consultant for the next three years. Because 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 6 of 9 

of that selection process and because of their familiarity with the project the Engineer’s 

Office recommends selecting AE2S for this effort without another selection process. 

In assessing what the City may need as part of the project, AE2S has increased the 

preliminary estimate from what was initially discussed. In 2015 an estimate was used to 

submit to the State Water Commission (SWC) for the grant request that the City was 

successful in getting. Because of this increase, city staff is recommending that we agree 

to preliminary engineering design at this time. The agreement would be adjusted later 

when there is a final design and the bidding process has been completed.  The agreement 

for the preliminary design services for this project estimates the cost to be $32,600. The 

City will pay AE2S hourly up to that amount. If necessary, this matter will come back to 

the City Commission for approval if the amount is expected to exceed that. The State 

Water Commission grant assumes the funding responsibility for 35% of design and 65% 

for construction. The city’s share based on this estimate would be $32,600 x 65% which 

comes out to approximately $21,190 for this agreement. This amount is currently 

budgeted for and will come out of the utility fund.  It was recommended to enter into an 

agreement with AE2S.  

 

Commissioner Laber inquired about I&C upgrade, which usually consists of a new 

computer that is attached to the pumps for regulation purposes.  Director Froseth 

explained that this project is separated into two parts and the Sunset Booster pump is the 

larger of the two parts which is separate from the I&C part of the project.  More of the 

planning and construction would be in the Sunset booster pump part of the project.  The 

second component is the instrument and implementation controls portion of the project 

and that is the overall system implementation of I&C.  AE2S will help the City with this 

part of the design.  The preliminary assessment will make sure that the City is covering 

the growth seen over the last several years in its pace of growth.  The 2007 Master Plan 

was used previously and will probably not meet the needs going forward.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the Preliminary Design Engineering Services 

Agreement with AE2S for the Sunset Booster Station and Distribution Control 

Improvements project.  Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         Consider commission portfolio and committee assignments. City Administrator 

Neubauer presented the portfolio and committee assignments for the Board of City 

Commissioners.  One additional assignment was made and inserted in the Amended 

report, (the Finance Committee), and it will be assigned to Mayor Helbling.   Mayor  

Helbling will be assigned the Mandan Progress Organization for now and that can be 

reviewed at a later time if necessary. 

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the portfolio and committee assignments as 

discussed. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 7 of 9 

5.         Consider Reappointment of Sue Balcom & Cameo Skager to the Dakota Media 

Access Board of Directors. City Administrator Neubauer presented for reappointment a 

Mandan and a Morton County resident to the Dakota Media Access (DMA) Board of 

Directors.  DMA serves both Bismarck and Mandan and is represented on their Board of 

Directors by residents from both communities.  DMA President, Jack McDonald, is 

requesting Morton County resident Sue Balcom, and Mandan resident Cameo Skager, be 

reappointed to the DMA Board as Mandan representatives to a term ending July 1, 2020. 

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the reappointment of Sue Balcom and Cameo 

Skager to the DMA Board of Directors to a term ending July 1, 2020.  Commissioner 

Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner 

Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

J.        RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:    

1.         Second consideration of Ordinance 1244 annexing property at 2300 14
th

 Ave. SE. 

Principal Planner Decker said that as brought forward at the last meeting, this is a request 

by the property owners to be annexed into the City of Mandan so they can obtain water 

and sewer services from the City.  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Second 

consideration of Ordinance 1244 annexing property at 2300 14th Ave. SE.  

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.         First consideration of Ordinance 1246 rezoning Lot 3, Block 1 of Sylvester’s 

Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition.  Principal Planner Decker presented a request to review a 

previous action of restricted uses allowed in this CC zoning district. This proposed 

ordinance removes those restrictions. In 2008 restrictions were placed on the uses that 

could be developed in this area. The intent was to limit uses to less intense commercial 

uses, rather than more intense industrial uses. The categories of uses that were excluded 

were so broad that commercial uses that were considered appropriate for the area were 

excluded.  In 2013 the use restrictions were removed from the adjoining properties in 

order to allow commercial uses. This request is to remove the use restrictions from this 

property in order to allow development of a national chain tire sales and auto repair store.   

 

This use is part of Service Group B. This is an allowed use in the CC district and will be 

a business located within the building.  Business Development and Communications 

Director Huber has discussed this proposed development with the developer and stated 

she is in favor of this rezoning.  The use is compatible with neighboring uses.  The Land 

Use and Transportation Plan recommended that this area be developed with commercial 

uses and this is a commercial use.  It was recommended to approve this Ordinance by the 

Planning and Zoning Commission.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1246 

rezoning Lot 3, Block 1 of Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3rd Addition.  Commissioner 

Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 8 of 9 

Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner 

Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         First consideration of Ordinance 1247 amending and reenacting Sections 18-2-2 

through 18-2-5 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to juvenile curfew. Principal 

Planner Decker presented a request to revise the language within this code.  The violation 

statements contained in 18-2-4 have been moved to 18-2-2. The current language only 

applies to 18-2-4 and is meaningless; Also, 18-2-5 has been renumbered to 18-2; and  

the word offense has been replaced with violation explaining that an offense is a type of 

violation.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1247 

amending and reenacting Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of the Mandan Municipal Code 

related to juvenile curfew. Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         First consideration of Ordinance 1248 adding and enacting Chapter 26 of the 

Mandan Municipal Code related to code enforcement.  Planner Decker explained that 

this proposed ordinance establishes uniform procedures for enforcing the code.  Code 

enforcement currently involves working with several department directors. Duties will 

expand over time to include additional departments. It is appropriate to create a separate 

code enforcement chapter that establishes uniform procedures for dealing with violations 

of the municipal code in order to manage it better.  Joseph A. Camisa Jr., City Code 

Enforcement Officer came forward and explained how the process works stating that the 

individuals that comply are typically cleared up in a very short time.  Those who do not 

comply are taken through Municipal Court process.  This provision will impose a fine of 

$500 for repeat offenders.  Any property that receives a $500 fine or less would be 

assessed against the property.  

 

The last component will create an appeals court.  Residents will have 5 days to contact 

the code officer or correct the problem.  If not corrected within the 5 days, another 5 days 

is given to correct.  Extensions are granted if the request is reasonable.  This does not 

eliminate the process of a legal court action.  The ultimate goal is to achieve compliance 

with the code.  City Attorney Brown commented that the work done on this revision is 

appropriate.  It is designed to keep cases out of the court system and resolved in a timely 

fashion through an administrative process.  If it does not work through the Code Officer, 

the issues would come before the City Commission which is an administrative body.  

Commissioner Laber requested that a determination be made as to the number of 

members appointed to this group, that it be determined to be either 3 or 5, and that the 

decision be made soon so it is in place.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1248 adding 

and enacting Chapter 26 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to code enforcement. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of July 5, 2016 

Page 9 of 9 

Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

    

K.       OTHER BUSINESS:   

1.        Mayor Helbling extended a thank you to Del Wetsch and the Mandan Progress 

Organization for their hard work during the 4
th

 of July weekend festivities.  Chief 

Nardello reported that there were approximately 5 grass fires and 1 structure fire during 

the 4
th

 of July weekend, so that it was a fairly quiet weekend for the 4
th

 of July.    

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Braun moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 p.m. Commissioner Rohr 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

 

 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Timothy A. Helbling,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

This request is to split Lot 11 so that each half lot can be sold to the adjoining lots. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

The property owners of Lots 10 and 12 each wish to purchase half of Lot 11. 

 

Since the half lots being created by this plat are narrower than allowed by the zoning 

requirements, a note has been added indicating that these are not buildable lots. 

 

There is a utility easement created by plat running along the boundary between Lots 10 and 11.  

There are no utilities in the easement and responses have been obtained from all utility companies 

indicating that they do not need the easement.  Lot 10 is shown on this replat so that the portion 

of the utility easement located on Lot 10 can be vacated with this replat. 

 

An easement is being added to the front of these lots since there are utilities running along the 

front of these lots.  No easement was created with the original plat. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Current plat 

2. Replat 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Recommend approval. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to approve replat of Lots 10 and 11, Block 1, Keidel’s South Heart Terrace Second 

Addition. 

  

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval replat of Lots 10 and 11, Block 

1, Keidel’s South Heart Terrace Second Addition 

 

  

Consent No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject:  Replat of Lots 10 and 11, Block 1, Keidel’s South Heart Terrace Second Addition 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject:  Replat of Lots 10 and 11, Block 1, Keidel’s South Heart Terrace Second Addition 

Page 3 of 3 

 



IConsent No.3
LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICEOF ATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN17926 (1012012)

Type: oLocal Permit *0 CharityLocalPermit
Permit Number

2016-40

+ Poker. Twenty-one. and Paddlewheels maybe Conducted onlybya CharilyLocalPermit.

10/1/2016
Ending

Zip Code

Date(s) Authorized (Readlnstructlon 2)

County

ND Morton

BusinessPhoneNumber

City

Nameof Organization
We Got Hope

ContactPerson
Carol Hanson

SiteName
The Drink

MaillngAddress

Checkthe Game(s) Authorized:

City

Mandan

08iogo rKI Raffle o Calendar Raffle o SportsPool o Poker' o Twenty-one" o Paddlewheels'

Restriction:

Auditor Telephone Number

(701) 667-3250Patrick B Haug7/6/2016

Requirement: For a "CharilyLocalPermit,"the organization mustfilea "Reporton a CharityLocalPermit" with the cityor countyauditor M!l Office of
Attorney Generalwithin 3 ays of the event

Date

Pleasesee the instructi 5 on the backside of t . form on to complete the Permit.
For a raffleor calendar raffie, read"Information Required 10 be Preprinted on a Standard RaffleTicker' below.

_____________- cu~~~sli~ _

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET:

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket number;
3. Price of the ticket, including any discounted price;
4. Prize. description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player. or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5. For a licensed orqanization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print
the authoriz.ing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to Win;
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation. a statement that a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age. a statement that a person must be at least

'_'_u years of age to buy a ticket. or win a prize;
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of Winning theprize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal odour thousand dollars.



ZipCode

JJSVI

, harity Local Permit (one eventper year)

Date(s) of Activity I'" ~o/~ r ocr·~

to dl I~
Title" BusinessPhoneNumber

tOD(,i~.cu+Nt

Local Permit

APPLICATION FORA LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN 9338 (9-2009)

Application for:

Check the ame(s)to be Conducted:

o Bingo ~affle

• Poker,Twenty-one,and Paddlewhaels may be Conductedonly by a CharityLocalPermit.

DCatendar Raffle DSpOJ'ls Pool 0 Poker· 0 Twenty-one' D Paddlawheels·

DESCRIPTION ANDRETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BEAWARDED

GameType Description of Prize Retail Value of
Pri7A

g~cJSlflO B~+jJ.e!:"'" 'iV :;00
J. >:7;· .f 1,.1 I,.J!At0_j('"

Gz~ct;) (tf h"1.-e 'rIA.. ~~ 51 SC0~-h I~ - fvJJ..iYii /"

i-/ ~ Dtiru« ~rv'k.t~{)iJ2.! 11 LIDo
(/

GameType Description of Prize Retail Value of
Prize

Total:
tml\j~Q~p.ar)

Does the organization presentlyhave a state gaming license? ITt No 0 Yes .. If ·Yes,nthe organization is not eHgibJe for a local permitorcharitylocal
permit and should call the Off1ce of AttorneyGeneral at 1·aOO"~240_

Has the organization receiveda charity local permit from this or anothercity or county for the fiscal yearJuly 1 through June 30? 5(NO 0 Yes- It ·Yest
the organizationdoes not qualify for a local permit or charity local permit.

Has the organiz.ation receiveda local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 throughJune30? I5lI No 0 Yes - II 'Yes,"
indicate the total value of all prizesprevlously awarded: $ . Thisamountis part of thetolafprize(imitof$12,dfiOper year.

Business PhoneNumbAr

-'



.' .--/.

"'-._.'.--:, ..

..~..~ ·

c" •• • ••

: n::fllltl·tt



CONSENT #4

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

July 19,2016
July 13, 2016
Finance
Greg Welch
Greg Welch, Finance Director
Pledge of Securities Reports

PURPOSE
To consider approval of pledge of securities reports.

BACKGROUND
The board of any public corporation may accept from any financial institution, as security
for repayment of deposits, a pledge of securities in lieu of a personal or surety bond.
When securities are so pledged to the board of any public corporation, the board shall
require security in the amount of one hundred ten dollars for every one hundred dollars of
public deposits (NDCC 21-04-09).

The board of the public corporation, upon the acceptance of any securities as a pledge for
repayment of deposits, shall make a complete and detailed record of such acceptance and
approval and shall preserve the same with its other records. Such securities must be
reapproved by the board at least semiannually (NDCC 21-04-11).

The City of Mandan currently utilizes the following financial institutions for banking
services which meet the pledge of security requirements:

• Wells Fargo Bank
• Starion Financial

ATTACHMENTS
Pledge of securities reports:

• Wells Fargo Bank
• Starion Financial



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: July 19,2016
Subject: Pledge of Securities Reports
Page 2 of2

FISCAL IMPACT
None

STAFF IMPACT
None

LEGAL REVIEW
In accordance with the provisions ofNDCC 21-04.

RECOMMENDATION
To approve the following pledge of securities reports:

• Wells Fargo Bank
• Starion Financial

SUGGESTED MOTION
Move to approve the following pledge of securities reports:

• Wells Fargo Bank
• Starion Financial



STAGECOACH SWSBP

WELLS FARGO BANK. N.A.

Confirmation

Repurchase Agreement

CITY OF ~IANDAN

ATTN: GREG WELCH

205 2ND AVE NW

MANDAN NO 58554-3125

ACCOUNT SUMHARY

Date 06/30/2016

Account

ACCOUNT DETAIL

II

Investment

From Date

To Date

Rate

Principal

Interest

Co11aterll.1ized By
FHG-3

'I; Due

Maturity Date

CUSIP

Sequence

Price

Accrued lnterest

Repurchase Agreement

06/30/2016

07/01/2016

.01000000 l

$ 13.402.055 11

s 3.72

REPURCHASE AGREEMENT DETAIL

s 13,938,601 26

G08641

3. SO 'I;

05/01/2045

3128MJWB2

063016
105.474002

$ 40,654.27

INVESTl~ENTS NOT FDIC INSURED



~.JII'
BNY MELLON

Broker/Dealer Services
One Wall Street, Fourth Floor
New York, NY 10286

Date: 06/30/16
000375 XBGSCD51
ATTN: GREG WELCH, FINANCE DIRECTOR
CITY OF MANDAN
205 2ND AVE NW
MANDAN, ND 58554

Account Id: Tax Id Number:

This advice is supplied as part of the Tri-Party Collateral agreement among
the Customer, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and The Bank of New York Mellon. Any
questions should be dire,... ... "" .......... ".:nn~tte Frater, Senior Associate,
BDS/Tri-Party Services,

As agent we confirm the following collateralized deposit information received
from Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as of close of business the last business day of
the month.

Date: 06/30/16
The collateral segregated on your behalf on 06/30/16 is as follows:

CUSIP
3138M8WDI
3138WIGEl

DESCRIPTION
FNMA FNMS 3.000Y. 09/01/42
FNMA FNMS 3.000Y. 02/01/43

QUANTITY
249,211. 00
94,296.00

TOTAL MKT VALUE

MARKET VALUE
179,644.73
74,875.51

254,520.24



Pledges By Pledgee And Maturity BBA IPledged To: City of Mandan

As Of 6/30/2016
Starion Financial· Mandan, ND

Page 13 of 48

Receipt# CUSIP Ase 320 Description PoolIType Moody Original Face
Pledged

Safekeeping Location Maturity Prerefund Coupon sap Pledged Percent Original Face Par Book Value Market Value

091608MH9 AFS BISMARCK SO #1-REF NO 17 Aa2 550,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 05/01/17 3.00 100.00% 550,000.00 550,000.00 550,000.00 550,902.00

3136G1F53 AFS FNMAAGENCY -1X 1,250,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 08/28/18 1.25 AA+ 100.00% 1,250,000.00 1,250,000.00 1,250,000.00 1,260,875.00

31381U4F1 AFS FNMA Cony <7 AcU360 Balloon 471622 993,673.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 07/01/19 1.86 100.00% 993,673.00 914,109.49 924,750.03 928,776.50

3138L3AC9 AFS FNMA Cony <7 AcU360 Balloon AM2702 1,500,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 03/01/20 1.94 100.00% 1,500,000.00 1,405,668.20 1,427,141.33 1,432,802.52

8928640N6 AFS TRAILL WTR RES OIST NO 21 300,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 05/01/21 1.55 100.00% 300,000.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 308,970.00

31419GSJ4 AFS FNMA 15YR AE5920 1,725,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 10/01/25 3.50 100.00% 1,725,000.00 453,302.57 472,228.65 480,506.24

3138ASS94 AFS FNMA 15YR AJ1443 1,075,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 09/01/26 4.00 100.00% 1,075,000.00 430,528.55 460,940.01 458,314.35

3138EOKF5 AFS FNMA 15YR AJ7493 1,000,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 12/01126 3.00 100.00% 1,000,000.00 446,368.25 461,486.44 467,392.61

31417AM30 AFS FNMA 15YR AB3977 1,500,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 12/01/26 4.00 100.00% 1,500,000.00 476,145.72 502,900.30 507,324.33

31417ARL5 AFS FNMA 15YR AB4090 2,421,513.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 12/01/26 3.00 100.00% 2,421,513.00 959,126.84 983,388.55 1,004,303.99

3138E7TW4 AFS FNMA 15YR AK3284 1,000,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 02/01/27 3.00 100.00% 1,000,000.00 432,388.66 445,703.32 452,818.12

3138ELYF4 AFS FNMA 15YR AL4309 1,077,457.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 10/01/28 4.00 100.00% 1,077,457.00 606,857.94 644,920.78 641,039.31

3138ENV55 AFS FNMA 20YR AL6035 1,465,000.00
WELL: WELLS FARGO 05/01/34 4.00 100.00% 1,465,000.00 1,179,259.65 1,290,859.13 1,278,271.84

Although'thei"fOrma6on-i" this roporlhasb66n 'obtained-frOm sources BSA ~ Baker Bond Accounting ®believed to be reliable, its accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

6/30/2016 11:30 AM ~ JHK I BISM 509 The Baker Group Software Solutions, Inc.



Pledged To: City of Mandan

As Of 613012016

Receipt# CUSIP ASC320 Description
Safekeeping Location Maturity Prerefund

3137AMNN3 AFS FHR4012 JK
WELL:WELLS FARGO 12/15/40

3136AGPP1 AFS FNR 2013·105 PJ
WELL: WELLS FARGO 11/25141

36179MLL2 AFS GNMAI15x1
WELL: WELLS FARGO 08120142

16 Securities Pledged To: 170 • City of Mandan

Pledges By Pledgee And Maturity

Starion Financial· Mandan, ND

PoolIType Moody Original Face
Pledged

Coupon S&P Pledged Percent Original Face Par Book Value

1,000,000.00
3.50 100.00% 1,000,000.00 472,927.17 491,531.07

1,575,000.00
3.50 100.00% 1,575,000.00 995,625.84 1,033,982.52

MA0331 1,900,000.00
2.50 100.00% 1,900,000.00 748,481.90 775,575.00

20,332,643.00 11,620,590.78 12,015,407.13

Page 14 of 48

Market Value

499,531.22

1,054,316.49

768,413.92

12,094,558.44

Aimough'tiJe iljfurmatio,iiiJ' iI1isrepo',:t has'bOOn 'obtained from sources
believed to be reliable, its accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

61301201611:30AM-JHKIBISM 510

BSA • Baker Bond Accounting ®

The Baker Group Software Solutions, Inc.



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider the transfer of $2,000.00 from the Police 

Department’s Salary fund to the Equipment Repairs and Maintenance fund for the 

maintenance of our traffic radar and lidar units. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The police department’s traffic radar and lidar units 

are in need of calibration and recertification as part of normal and routine maintenance. 

The cost for this will be approximately $2,000.00 and was inadvertently omitted by the 

Police Department for our 2016 Budget request to the City last year.  

  

ATTACHMENTS:  None 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Finance Director Welch indicated there is unused money/ savings in 

the Police Department’s salary fund to cover this request. The unused money is from 

unfilled positions the Police Department has had up to this point of the year.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:  None 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: None 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend approval of the money transfer between funds. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the request for transfer of $2000.00 from the 

Police Department’s 2016 Salary fund to the 2016 Equipment Maintenance and Repair 

fund. 

 

 

 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Jason Ziegler 

PRESENTER: Chief Jason Ziegler 

SUBJECT: Transfer of funds in 2016 budget 

 

 

  

Consent No. 5   



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider approval of contract with TL Stroh for 

architectural services of fire station 3. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The Mandan Fire Department advertised and received 

proposals for architectural services of fire station 3 in February 2016. An architectural selection 

committee recommended TL Stroh for the design of station 3 and the Mandan City Commission 

awarded the project on June 7, 2016.  TL Stroh submitted a contract for architectural services 

and City Attorney Brown has reviewed the proposed contract. It is now recommended to enter 

into a contractual agreement for fire station 3 designs with TL Stroh. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Architectural contract for fire station 3 design services will be 

available upon request at the meeting. (The contract is 100+ pages.) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  TL Stroh architectural design fees are $82,500 with funding provided 

through the Mandan City allocation of Oil Impact Fund for "hub cities". The proposed design 

fees would move the project to the construction document phase and not through the bidding 

process until such time when the City of Mandan is ready to complete the entire construction 

project. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Fire department staff will need to dedicate numerous meeting dates to meet 

with TL Stroh staff so that we may provide facility needs. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  City Attorney has reviewed the contract with TL Stroh. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Should the Mandan City Commission continue to have 

adequate funding and see the need for the construction of fire station 3, I recommend the 

Commission accept the contract with TL Stroh Architect & Design for the amount of $82,500.  

 

 

 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 14, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Fire 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

PRESENTER: Steve Nardello, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: Contract of Architectural Services 

 

  

Old Business No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016  

Subject: Architectural Services 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve a contract with TL Stroh Architect & Design for 

the amount of $82,500 to complete fire station design only, not to include bidding or 

construction. 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider having the Bismarck-Mandan Young 

Professionals Network (YPN) develop a park concept for the expansion of Mandan’s 

Longfellow Veteran’s Park. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  From March 3, 2015 City Commission Agenda 

Documentation: 

 

We have been in discussion with the NDDOT regarding the property that 

lies between the south side of Liberty Memorial Bridge and Pirates Cove 

(condominiums). Much of the west side of the Missouri River is in private 

hands which limits the public’s opportunity to enjoy its benefits. 

 

This property was acquired for the construction of the Liberty Memorial 

Bridge and was used as a staging area while the bridge was under 

construction. Rather than selling the property NDDOT has determined 

that retaining ownership of this land is essential for future maintenance, 

repair and ultimately replacement of the bridge, and that it would be in 

the best interests of the public to have the City of Mandan manage this 

land as part of Richard M. Longfellow Veterans Park. 

 

NDDOT would retain ownership of the property and the right to enter to 

conduct maintenance, repair and replacement activities on the bridge. We 

have asked that NDDOT provide us with 48 hours advance notice if any 

activity were to take place (other than at times of emergency).  

 

Improvements to the property would be the responsibility of the City of 

Mandan with maintenance of the park the responsibility of the Mandan 

Park District. This would mirror the arrangement we have with the 

current Longfellow Park. 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Young Professionals Network Request 

 

  

New Business No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject:  Young Professionals Network Request 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Should the Commission approve of this amendment, we would then begin 

planning improvements to the area with potential funding coming from the 

Visitors Fund. 

 

A member of the YPN, Dave Lehman, approached us looking for a project they could 

become involved in. I suggested the idea of having the YPN involved in developing a 

park concept for this 2 acre site. The YPN, through its diverse membership, and many 

skillsets represented would be committed to leading and / or supporting the project from 

concept to completion. The YPN would assemble a committee to moving this project 

forward.  In addition to the YPN leading this effort we have suggested representation 

from adjacent property owners (Pirates Cove, Bridgeview Bay Homeowners Assn.) along 

with City of Mandan and Mandan Park District (as the Mandan Park District has agreed 

to the maintenance of the area). 

 

Potential schedule would be: 

2016 Summer/Fall develop concepts, make proposal to Visitors Committee 

2016 Fall/Winter develop plans and specs 

2017 Spring/Summer – bid and construct 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   June 30, 2016 Letter from Stacey Thomas, YPN President 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  unknown at this time, but would request funding from the Mandan 

Visitors Fund. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  time  

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend having the YPN lead efforts on developing park 

concepts for the expansion of Richard M. Longfellow Veterans’ Park. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to have the YPN lead efforts on developing park 

concepts for the expansion of Richard M. Longfellow Veterans’ Park. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject:  Young Professionals Network Request 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To update the City Commission regarding activities of the 

LHWRD related to the levee system and possible changes. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Attached is a memo provided to the City 

Commission from Mr. Robinson in March 2016 related to the current levee system. The 

LHWRD met this past Thursday, July 14. Mr. Robinson will provide an update from this 

meeting.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:   March 2016 Memo; a full copy of the Lower Heart River Hydraulic 

Analysis, February 2015, prepared by Bolton & Menk is available upon request. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  unknown at this time 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  n/a 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: n/a 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Bill Robinson, Chair, Lower Heart Water Resource 

District (LHWRD) 

SUBJECT: Update on Levee System 

 

  

New Business No. 2 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Update on Levee System 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Update on Levee System 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider recommendations from the Community 

Beautification Committee (CBC) regarding benches in the downtown area. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The CBC has formed a subcommittee to review 

enhancements possible for the downtown area. Examples of items being considered 

include additional decorative street lights, trees, brick kiosks, benches, trash receptacles 

etc. 

 

As the subcommittee reviewed the benches downtown and the state of disrepair many of 

them are in, the1988 contract with Signs and Wonders was reviewed. Contact was made 

with Rick Knodel, Signs and Wonders for him to appear at the April 14 CBC meeting. 

John NarDawahl, NarDawahl’s Tattoo Emporium; Mary Ann and Lance Preble, Preble 

Medical Services, Inc.; and Rick and Kathy Knodel, Signs & Wonders, attending the 

meeting. Mr. NarDawahl, Mary Ann and Lance Preble currently rent bench signs from 

Mr. Knodel. The excerpt from minutes from the April 14 meeting is as follows: 

 

At the last meeting, the committee moved to recommend terminating the 

contract for advertising benches. Representatives of Signs & Wonders, the 

company that owns the benches, and business owners using the benches 

for advertising spoke to the committee.  

 

Knodel plans to refurbish the signs. He suggested relocating them to other 

main thoroughfares throughout the community, where people may be 

waiting for public transportation. Neubauer said the City has to abide by 

ND Department of Transportation regulations for those areas. Brian 

Dehnert suggested Signs & Wonders work with the City and the DOT to 

determine where benches would be of best use.  

 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Downtown Advertising Benches 

 

  

New Business No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Downtown Advertising Benches 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Knodel said other parties have been moving the benches to places that 

would not be of benefit to businesses, such as facing the buildings rather 

than streets. He asked why nobody has contacted Signs & Wonders with 

concerns. Most signs have the company’s logo on the back. The only way 

to move the benches is to lift them, which results in wear and tear on the 

wood and concrete. He is apprehensive to improve the benches, as he is 

concerned they will continue to be damaged. He requested the City 

contact Signs & Wonders if they need to be moved. 

 

At a recent meeting of the Mandan Architectural Review Commission, it 

was decided all portable signs should be clearly labeled to identify 

ownership and a point of contact. Ellen Huber recommended having a 

placard on each bench that clearly indicates ownership. She further 

recommended creating points of contact at both Signs & Wonders and the 

City for any questions regarding sign placement or repair. She suggested, 

if the benches stay, that the City work with Signs & Wonders to use the 

benches for promotion of community events.  

 

Signs and Wonders representatives indicated the benches showcase 

Mandan businesses. They said they only promote ad placements to 

Mandan businesses. Some advertisements are paid in advance. HIT, Inc. 

has paid for advertising through January 2017. There is no provision 

within client contracts addressing the possibility of contract termination 

with the City. The average cost for advertisement is $40 per month. The 

maintenance of the sign is the responsibility of Signs & Wonders. 

 

NarDawahl uses a bench to advertise for his business. He says it is the 

best use of signage that follows the city sign policy. City policy does not 

allow for signs below 6 feet. The bench is very conveniently placed for 

advertisement. He feels it has drawn a lot of attention and helped direct 

traffic to his business, which is located on a lower level. It provides small 

businesses with an affordable form of advertising. He sees people sitting 

on the benches. He would like to see the benches repaired. He pays $42 

per month.  

 

Mary Ann Preble uses a bench to advertise for Preble Medical Services, 

Inc. Employees use the bench for visual way-finding at the corner of 

Collins Avenue to direct customers to the business. They would like to see 

the bench stay. They have a commitment through March 31, 2017. 

 

Knodel suggested allowing individuals who would like to keep the benches 

to purchase them and phase out the other benches. He offered to remove 

the signs not being rented from Main Street. Huber said there are issues 

with allowing private items in the public right-of-way.  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Downtown Advertising Benches 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 

Committee members discussed the advertising benches. Huettl said he 

doesn’t view the well-maintained benches, such as the NarDawahl and 

Preble benches, as eyesores or problems. Dehnert suggested leaving the 

signs used by businesses downtown for key advertising and moving the 

other signs to public transit areas in the community. Bob Decker said if 

benches are allowed, it should be linked in some way to the sign code. 

Lalim will look into signage options for basement businesses. 

 

Huber suggested leaving the benches in place through March 31, 2017. It 

would allow notice for existing advertisers and provide time for research 

into other possible placements. It would allow for the sign policy to be 

reviewed and potentially revised. Decker suggested eliminating the bench 

contract and modifying the sign ordinance. 

 

The committee discussed temporary signage. Lalim and the Mandan 

Architectural Review Commission are working to develop an ordinance to 

better address temporary and temporary off-premise signage.  

 

Huber moved to recommend allowing the advertising benches to stay 

through March 31, 2017. In the interim, any benches being used for 

advertising must be repaired within 60 days. Those not being for 

advertising would be removed from Main Street with the opportunity for 

possible relocation to areas conducive with the CAT bus route. Dehnert 

seconded. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Further discussion at the May 19, 2016 meeting was held and a clarification of previous 

motion was made  

Dehnert moved to require removal of advertising benches not under an 

existing contract within 60 days from first notice. Froseth seconded. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:   1988 Contract with Signs & Wonders 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  n/a 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has reviewed the contract and indicated that to be 

sure we give written notice of the termination. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The recommendation from the CBC is as follows: 

The contract between the City of Mandan and Signs and Wonders be 

terminated as of March 31, 2017, in the meantime, any benches being used 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Downtown Advertising Benches 

Page 4 of 7 

 

for advertising (advertisement for Signs & Wonders is not considered 

advertising) be removed within 60 days of first notice. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move that the contract between the City of 

Mandan and Signs and Wonders be terminated as of March 31, 2017, in 

the meantime, any benches being used for advertising (advertisement for 

Signs & Wonders is not considered advertising) be removed within 60 

days of first notice. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Downtown Advertising Benches 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Downtown Advertising Benches 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Downtown Advertising Benches 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a Mandan Growth Fund Committee 
recommendation for approval of a Downtown Storefront Improvement Program 
application by HB Properties for 122 E Main Street. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee met July 14, 
2016 to consider the subject application. The estimated cost of the proposed storefront 
improvement project is $82,920. The application is for the maximum $30,000 in matching 
funds. The application outlines plans to replace all windows in the building including two 
openings presently boarded up on the building’s north side; adding stucco to the exterior 
in a tan color and brick about 3 feet high around the building’s base. Garage doors will be 
painted tan. A landscaping wall and planter will extend from the building’s west wall to 
the sidewalk, eventually to feature vines once growth is established, but initially hanging 
plants. A pole sign for Dakota Crop Insurance is planned for the corner of the lot at Main 
Street and First Ave NE to include a landscaped area at its base with a rock between the 
sign poles for the business Rocks That Talk. (Note: The building is within a downtown 
area where construction is allowed lot line to lot line.) 

To help assure that all signs of blight are addressed on the site, the applicant is also going 
to improve a portion of the lot on the north side of the parcel that is currently graveled. 
The plan is to install a cedar screening fence immediately behind the building (for the 
storage of boulders for the rock engraving business) and hard surfacing the remainder of 
the area for overflow parking. The owners may add on to the building’s north side shop 
area in the future. 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 
PREPARATION DATE: July 14, 2016 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
SUBJECT: HB Properties Application for Downtown 

Storefront Improvement Program 

New Business No. 4i 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 2 of 16 

The applicant is planning additional investment in interior building renovation and other 
project components not eligible for the Storefront Improvement program such as new 
concrete and the hard surfacing of the non-fenced portion of the gravel lot. These costs 
will likely exceed $20,000. 

The site and building renovation plan received approval from the Mandan Architectural 
Review Commission on July 12, 2016. The placement of the pole sign and rock need 
further review to be sure they do not intrude on the sight triangle as per the sign policy. 

ATTACHMENTS:   Application. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The request is for $30,000 in matching funds. All funds previously 
earmarked within the Mandan Growth Fund for the Downtown Storefront Improvement 
program are expended and committed. Funding for this application would need to come 
from unallocated funds for economic development projects as a whole. This balance 
stands at $122,718.  

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal staff time is required for application processing and 
finalization

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has reviewed the application. Per local ordinance, an 
automatic door is required on at least one entrance to the building. A business incentive 
agreement is also required for projects exceeding $25,000 in assistance. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee voted 9-0 to recommend 
approval of the application for up to $30,000 in matching funds for the storefront 
improvement project by HB Properties at 122 E Main Street. 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve providing up to $30,000 in matching funds 
for the storefront improvement project by by HB Properties at 122 E Main Street. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 3 of 16 
 

  



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 4 of 16 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 5 of 16 
 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 6 of 16 
 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 7 of 16 
 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 8 of 16 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 9 of 16 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 10 of 16 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 11 of 16 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 12 of 16 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 13 of 16 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 14 of 16 
 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 15 of 16 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 
Page 16 of 16 
 

 



  

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a Mandan Growth Fund Committee 

recommendation to update and clarify the Restaurant Rewards Program Overview. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee met July 

14, 2016. Among agenda items was circling back to some language that had been flagged 

as pending in the Restaurant Rewards Program description. Specifically, the third item 

under Conditions still has the following statement: 

 
Pending further discussion — First-time restaurant operators or applicants that have 
been in business for less than one year must submit application to the local N.D. 
Small Business Development Center office and after start-up participate in quarterly 
consultations with the SBDC or another approved business consultant. 

 

The committee determined that this requirement is not needed given that the Restaurant 

Rewards Program components are low risk, so the MGF Committee does not need to be 

highly involved in assessing an applicant’s probability for success. This is because 1) the 

sales tax rebate is performance-based, meaning there’s no reward unless there are sales; 

and 2) the interest buy-down component requires approval of the base loan by a lead 

commercial lender and the Bank of North Dakota. 

 

The committee reviewed additional proposed changes in verbiage to put the program 

description in present tense as was approved, instead of future tense or a hypothetical 

context as it was proposed. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Program overview with proposed updates and clarifications. 

 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 14, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Updates to Restaurant Rewards Program 

 

  

New Business No. 4ii  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject: Storefront Improvement Application 

Page 2 of 2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal staff time is required to update program information in hard 

copy and online. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has reviewed the proposed changes. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee voted 9-0 to recommend 

approval of the program overview updates. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the updates as proposed to the Restaurant 

Rewards Program Overview.  

 



 
 

RESTAURANT REWARDS 
Sales Tax Rebate & Interest Buy-Down 

Incentive Program  
 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Restaurant businesses are an integral part of the Mandan community. Having convenient access to a 
variety of eateries is important to the quality of life for area residents and to the quality of experience for 
people visiting our community for various events and attractions. Convenient access to restaurants is 
also important to the attraction and retention of other types of businesses. 
 
Mandan’s demand for restaurants outstrips the supply. According to a 20165 Nielsen opportunity gap 
analysis, there is a $263 million gap between expenditures and supply or store sales for the category of 
foodservice and drinking places in Morton County, our primary trade area. Breaking this down further, the 
analysis shows a near $109 million gap for full-service restaurants, a $7.68.8 million gap for limited-
service eating places, and a $6.7 million gap for special foodservices. 
 
The Mandan City Commission, in cooperation with the Mandan Growth Fund Committee in cooperation 
with theand City of Mandan Business Development Department is proposing offering a new program to 
provide financial assurances for new and expanded restaurant facilities to locate and operate in our 
underserved market. The program is structured to help reduce both start-up and initial operational costs. 
 
The program is available to qualified retail and restaurant businesses new to or expanding in the City of 
Mandan. Mandan welcomes unique, one-of-a-kind restaurants as well as national franchise and 
corporate concepts. The program is open to restaurants that are full-service restaurants (table side 
service), limited service (order w/ cashier, food brought to tables), and fast food (counter service or drive-
up only). Restaurateurs may choose any location within the City. 
 
The program is offered through the City of Mandan’s Business Development Office through March 31, 
2017; at which time the program will be evaluated for a potential one-year extension. The funding source 
is a portion of the City’s 1 percent sales tax revenue. Approval may depend on availability of funds in the 
Growth Fund at the time of application. Funding for qualified applicants is encumbered on a first-come, 
first-served basis. Approved applicants will be required to enter into a participation agreement and a 
business incentive agreement with the City of Mandan. 
 
PROGRAM STRUCTURE & BENEFITS 
 
Sales tax rebate. Restaurants in Mandan collect a total of 3.25% in local taxes from customers: 

• 1.75% - City of Mandan sales tax. Of this total, a 1% amount is for uses such as economic 
development, property tax reduction, infrastructure and debt reduction. The remaining share, 
0.75%, is dedicated to a Mandan Park District sports complex approved by voters in June 2015. 

• 1% - City of Mandan restaurant and lodging tax. Funds may be used for capital construction and 
promotion projects to attract visitors to the community to use travel and tourism facilities. 

• 0.5% Morton County sales tax. Funds are dedicated to a joint jail project with Burleigh County. 
 
The City of Mandan will rebate back 100% of the collections of the 1% city sales tax for qualified 
restaurant owners for 5 years.  
 

Adopted April 5, 2016; 
Amended April 19, 2016 
Updates Proposed July 

14, 2016 



RESTAURANT REWARDS – Page 2 
 

 

Example: A restaurant generating $1 million in annual taxable sales would receive a rebate of $10,000. 
 
Interest buy-down. The City of Mandan will has set aside $162,000 in the Mandan Growth Fund to 
provide the local match in the form of a forgivable loan of up to $53,846 for qualified restaurants seeking 
a Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE interest buy-down. Funds will beare available on a first-come, first-
served basis. The restaurant must obtain preliminary approval from their commercial lender and the 
Bank of North Dakota.  
 
Flex PACE utilizes a partnership between financial institutions and the Bank of North Dakota through a 
participatory lending arrangement in which half of the loan amount is provided by the lead lender and half 
by the Bank of North Dakota. Funds are used to reduce the interest costs to borrowers by up to 5 percent 
below the lead lender’s rate to a rate as low as 1 percent. 
 
The program requires a local match, which in Mandan’s case is 35 percent. If the principal amount of a 
project warrants it, the program maximum allows for a buy-down of $153,846 with the state bank 
providing $100,000 and the City of Mandan required to provide $53,846. 
 
Absent this special program, Mandan Growth Fund Committee policy generally requires repayment of 
the principal of the local match after the term of the buy-down is complete (usually 5 years). The interest 
rate and repayment terms are determined based on the nature of the project and public benefits 
provided. Criteria include jobs creation, job quality, contribution to the local economy, project scope and 
level of private investment, generation of sales tax, and extent to which the borrower is provided a 
product or service missing or in greater need in the community. Priority projects in the areas of primary 
sector businesses, retail, child care and affordable housing will generally be considered for a 0% interest 
rate. 
 
Eligibility 
1. Application must be reviewed and have full approval by the Mandan Growth Fund Committee AND 

the Mandan City Commission prior to the opening of the restaurant or the expansion of an existing 
restaurant. Applications after the actionable event are not eligible. 

2. Applications will be considered for first-time restaurateurs, new and expanding concepts by existing 
restaurateurs, and expansion by restaurateurs from outside the City. An inter-city relocation is not 
eligible for the sales tax rebate without expansion as compared to the previous location. 

3. For an expansion of an existing restaurant, any sales tax rebate would be measured as the increase 
in sales above reported quarterly sales for the prior two years.  

4. Delivery or take-out only concepts are not eligible. 
5. At least 50% of revenue from any enterprise, including beverage sales, must be generated by 

prepared food sales on an annual average. 
6. The Mandan Growth Fund Committee will review each application on a case-by-case basis and 

reserves the right to make other exclusions if the use is not consistent with approved City 
redevelopment and development plans; if it does not benefit the health, safety and welfare of the 
community; or if the business activity does not meet the objectives of this program. 

 
Conditions 
1. In lease situations, a minimum 3-year agreement is preferred. 
2. Restaurant must be open for business a minimum of 30 hours per week. If an applicant proposes to 

be open fewer hours, justification must be presented with the application. 
3. Pending further discussion — First-time restaurant operators or applicants that have been in 

business for less than one year must submit application to the local N.D. Small Business 
Development Center office and after start-up participate in quarterly consultations with the SBDC or 
another approved business consultant. 

4.3. Installation of an automatic door is required for at least a main entrance to the building as 
required by Mandan Municipal Code Section 111-2-9. 

 



RESTAURANT REWARDS – Page 3 
 

 

Application Process 
1. Submit the application and all required attachments to the City of Mandan’s Business Development 

Office (application to be developed pending approval of program proposal). 
2. City staff will make every effort to review completed applications (along with all necessary supporting 

documentation required for the application process) within a 2-week period. 
3. The Mandan Growth Fund Committee will meet to review application and make recommendation to 

the Mandan City Commission. MGF meetings are scheduled as needed. Applicants will be notified of 
the meeting and asked to attend to present their request for assistance. 

4. An application recommended for approval will be forwarded to the Mandan City Commission for 
consideration. The City Commission meets the first and third Tuesdays of the month at 5:30 p.m.  
Applicants will be notified of the meeting and asked to attend to represent their request. 

5. Recommendations of the Growth Fund Committee will be presented to the City Commission for 
consideration of final approval within 45 days after a complete application is submitted. 

 
Implementation Procedures 
1. Business has 1 year from City Commission approval to be open and operational. This includes 

having a certificate of occupancy and being compliant with all laws and health regulations. The 
applicant may request an extension in writing to the City Commission. The extension may or may not 
be approved based on documentation of progress toward the goal. If the extension is not approved or 
the deadline passes without a qualified restaurant opening, the amount allocated to the applicant will 
be forfeited by the applicant. 

2. An approved restaurant will be required to provide the N.D. Tax Department with authorization to 
release data to the City of Mandan regarding its quarterly sales tax remittance. It will also be required 
to submit a copy of its monthly or quarterly sale tax remittance report to the City of Mandan. 

3. The City of Mandan will provide the sales tax rebate to the approved restaurant on an annual basis. 
4. Applicant (and landlord in lease situations) must be current on all municipally applied taxes, special 

assessments, utility bills, or loans. Payments will cease if either party fails to be current on these 
obligations. 

5. Payments cease if applicant discontinues the business, moves the business from Mandan, or fails to 
comply with any and all building, fire, health or zoning codes or regulations applicable to the 
business. 

6. The subsidy will be structured as an interest-free loan that will be pro-rated and forgiven over the 
course of 5 years from date of opening, provided the restaurant remains in continuous operation 
within the City of Mandan. A participating restaurant that locates outside the City before this time 
shall repay a pro-rata share of the subsidy. 

7. Following the first 12 months of subsidization and through the fifth year of operation, each applicant 
will be required to submit an annual report to the Business Development Office to provide information 
about full-time and part-time employment, wages and benefits. 

 
Application form and template legal agreement pending. For more information, contact the City of 
Mandan Business Development Office, phone 701-667-3485. 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To promptly fix a section of sanitary sewer that is improperly 

sloped. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  During the installation of sewermain to serve the 

Lakewood 8th addition, it was observed that the 8-inch sewermain stubbed to the west of 

40th along 24
th

 Street corridor (formerly Shoal Loop), is not at proper grade to drain towards 

the 40th Avenue sewermain. This was verified using survey instruments that showed the west 

side connection point invert to be 0.45 feet lower than the invert at the 40th Avenue 

manhole. It should actually be 0.6 feet or more above in order to properly drain towards 40
th

 

Avenue.   

 

There were two projects for which this segment of sanitary sewer was constructed, the first 

40 feet from the 40
th

 Avenue main was constructed in 2005 by Robert Gibb and Sons with 

Swenson-Hagen Engineering involved as the engineer for both design and inspection. The 

next 110 feet was constructed by Bowers Excavating with Toman Engineering involved as 

the engineer for both design and inspection.  

 

Our office has sent notice letters to all four entities involved with these past projects to give 

them a chance to correct at no cost to the city. Three of the four have agreed to dedicate their 

resources to making the fix, Robert Gibb and Sons responded saying that they will not 

participate and do not feel responsible for this issue.  

 

This fix comes with urgency for a few reasons; 

1) There are apartment buildings to the south of this sewermain that are using the 

existing line and have been since 2012. To our knowledge they have not backed up, 

but they do run an increased risk of sewer backup in the lines current state of 

improper slope. 

2) A relatively large apartment complex is being built just north of this segment that 

will need to tie into this main. The apartment’s targeted move in date is August 15
th

. 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: 40
th

 Avenue and 24
th

 Street SE Emergency Sewer 

Fix 

 

  

New Business No. 5 

- Revised 7/19/16 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject:  40
th

 Avenue and 24
th

 Street SE Emergency Sewer Fix 

Page 2 of 3 

 

The goal would be to get this fixed by August 5
th

 in order to beat that August 15
th

 

date. 

3) The Lakewood 8
th

 Street Improvement project, currently under contract, cannot 

finish until this problem is resolved.    

 

Given the urgent nature, we believed it qualifies as an emergency fix. Given the emergency 

classification, we believe it is necessary to have an abbreviated request for quotes with 

several contractors familiar with the area being asked for quotes to do the work. Our office 

has invited a few contractors to submit lump sum quotes to make this fix. We estimate the fix 

to be approximately $50,000. We have asked that the contractors submit their quote by 4:00 

on Tuesday, July 19
th

. Note; expect an update with those quotes by Tuesday’s 

commission meeting. We would recommend taking the low quote and authorizing the 

contractor to start with the fix as soon as possible, foregoing our typical formal contract 

process.    

 

Update: One bid was submitted. That bid was submitted by Basaraba Excavating & 

Dirt Works, LLC. Their bid to do the work is for $175,000. After receiving the bid, I 

talked to Brent Basaraba. He said that the depth, wet conditions, high amount of utility 

conflicts, and tight timeline all culminate to make this a very challenging project which 

is reflected in the price. He said that taking the resurfacing of 40
th

 out of the scope 

would bring it down some. No specifics on how much at this time.    

 

Going forward we would recommend to negotiate with the contractors we notified for 

this work while also working with the apartment building to push their move-in date 

back or tying into the existing sanitary line even though it is not graded properly as a 

short-term solution. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   1) Map of the area with the issue 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The funds for the fix would be paid for out of the utility fund. Our 

department anticipates working with the city attorney to recoup the cost from the original 

installer not willing to participate in the fix. The estimate is for this fix is $50,000. Expect 

the actual quote to be in by Tuesday’s meeting.   

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Coordination of two different engineering consultants and possibly two 

different contractors to make this fix.   

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Our department has kept the city attorney updated on this issue.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Our office recommends rejecting the low bid given the very high 

amount.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to reject the low bid provided given the very high costs. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject:  40
th

 Avenue and 24
th

 Street SE Emergency Sewer Fix 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To promptly fix a section of sanitary sewer that is improperly 

sloped. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  During the installation of sewermain to serve the 

Lakewood 8th addition, it was observed that the 8-inch sewermain stubbed to the west of 

40th along 24
th

 Street corridor (formerly Shoal Loop), is not at proper grade to drain 

towards the 40th Avenue sewermain. This was verified using survey instruments that 

showed the west side connection point invert to be 0.45 feet lower than the invert at the 

40th Avenue manhole. It should actually be 0.6 feet or more above in order to properly 

drain towards 40
th

 Avenue.   

 

There were two projects for which this segment of sanitary sewer was constructed, the 

first 40 feet from the 40
th

 Avenue main was constructed in 2005 by Robert Gibb and Sons 

with Swenson-Hagen Engineering involved as the engineer for both design and 

inspection. The next 110 feet was constructed by Bowers Excavating with Toman 

Engineering involved as the engineer for both design and inspection.  

 

Our office has sent notice letters to all four entities involved with these past projects to 

give them a chance to correct at no cost to the city. Three of the four have agreed to 

dedicate their resources to making the fix, Robert Gibb and Sons responded saying that 

they will not participate and do not feel responsible for this issue.  

 

This fix comes with urgency for a few reasons; 

1) There are apartment buildings to the south of this sewermain that are using the 

existing line and have been since 2012. To our knowledge they have not backed 

up, but they do run an increased risk of sewer backup in the lines current state of 

improper slope. 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: 40
th

 Avenue and 24
th

 Street SE Emergency Sewer 

Fix 

 

  

New Business No. 5 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject:  40
th

 Avenue and 24
th

 Street SE Emergency Sewer Fix 

Page 2 of 3 

 

2) A relatively large apartment complex is being built just north of this segment that 

will need to tie into this main. The apartment’s targeted move in date is August 

15
th

. The goal would be to get this fixed by August 5
th

 in order to beat that August 

15
th

 date. 

3) The Lakewood 8
th

 Street Improvement project, currently under contract, cannot 

finish until this problem is resolved.    

 

Given the urgent nature, we believed it qualifies as an emergency fix. Given the 

emergency classification, we believe it is necessary to have an abbreviated request for 

quotes with several contractors familiar with the area being asked for quotes to do the 

work. Our office has invited a few contractors to submit lump sum quotes to make this 

fix. We estimate the fix to be approximately $50,000. We have asked that the contractors 

submit their quote by 4:00 on Tuesday, July 19
th

. Note; expect an update with those 

quotes by Tuesday’s commission meeting. We would recommend taking the low quote 

and authorizing the contractor to start with the fix as soon as possible, foregoing our 

typical formal contract process.    

 

ATTACHMENTS:   1) Map of the area with the issue 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The funds for the fix would be paid for out of the utility fund. Our 

department anticipates working with the city attorney to recoup the cost from the original 

installer not willing to participate in the fix. The estimate is for this fix is $50,000. 

Expect the actual quote to be in by Tuesday’s meeting.   

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Coordination of two different engineering consultants and possibly 

two different contractors to make this fix.   

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Our department has kept the city attorney updated on this issue.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Our office recommends going forward with the sanitary sewer 

fix as described.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to authorize the low quote submitted by TBD to fix the 

sanitary sewer slope issue.  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

Subject:  40
th

 Avenue and 24
th

 Street SE Emergency Sewer Fix 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 



 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the second consideration of Ordinance No. 1248 

creating Chapter 26 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to code enforcement. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1248 

 

An Ordinance to Add and Enact Chapter 26 of the Mandan 

Municipal Code related to code enforcement 

 

WHEREAS, The Mandan Municipal Code has multiple requirements that periodically 

require enforcement actions, and 

 

WHEREAS, The city has employed a code enforcement officer to provide enforcement 

of city code requirements, and 

  

WHEREAS, It is necessary to establish a standard set of requirements and procedures for 

dealing with enforcement issues. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 

City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Chapter 26 is created to read. 

 

Chapter 26:  Municipal Code Enforcement 

Article 1. - Administration 

Sec. 26-1-1. – Authority and Powers, right of entry 

(a) Authority and powers.  The Code Enforcement Officer or designee shall have the 

authority and powers necessary to gain compliance with this code. These powers include 

issuing violation notices and citations, inspecting public and private property and using 

whatever administrative and judicial remedies are available under this code or state and 

federal law. 

(b) Right of entry.  The Code Enforcement Officer or designee is authorized to enter any 

building or premises for the purpose of making an inspection or to enforce any ordinance, 

subject to constitutional limitations and the procedures described in Section 2-2-1 of this 

code. 

Sec. 26-1-2. – Areas of Responsibility 

The code enforcement program is responsible for the enforcement of those requirements 

of this code deemed appropriate by the city administrator and city commission in order to ensure 

the protection of the public’s health, safety, welfare and quality of life.  The code enforcement 

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 1 



officer shall work with department directors to develop an enforcement procedure in the 

following areas of responsibility: 

(1) Municipal nuisance 

(2) Building and property maintenance 

(3) Zoning and land use 

(4) Public places and rights-of-way 

Sec. 26-1-3. – Duties 

(a) Investigation and action.   

(1) The code enforcement officer or designee shall investigate complaints received by 

the city concerning potential violations on public or private property.  If a 

violation is found, the Code Enforcement Officer or designee shall notify the 

violator and grant reasonable time to correct the violation. 

(2) The code enforcement officer or designee shall monitor activity within the city 

and, if a possible violation is identified, verify the validity of the violation.  Once 

the violation has been verified, the code enforcement officer or designee shall 

take appropriate action to correct the violation. 

(3) Depending on the nature of the violation, the code enforcement officer or 

designee shall issue a notice of violation and demand for corrective action for a 

non-criminal violation or issue a citation into municipal court for a criminal 

violation of city code.  The code enforcement officer or designee may also seek a 

civil penalty or other judicial relief to recoup city costs for mitigation of the 

violation or to obtain a court order to force the property owner to mitigate the 

violation. 

(4) Should a violation present an immediate threat to public health or safety or when 

there is a declared emergency, the code enforcement officer or designee may take 

immediate action to mitigate any threat to public health or safety caused by the 

violation. 

(b) Notification.  Notification of violation shall be delivered in person or by regular mail, 

unless otherwise stated in this code or state or federal law, rule or regulation.  The letter 

shall indicate: 

(1) Location of the violation 

(2) Nature of the violation 



(3) Reference to applicable code 

(4) Time in which to correct the violation 

(5) How to request a reasonable extension of time to correct the violation 

(6) Potential penalties for noncompliance 

Article 2. – Enforcement 

Sec. 26-2-1. – Options 

(a) Selection.  The code enforcement officer or designee may enforce this code through 

administrative, criminal or civil processes.  The Code Enforcement Officer shall use 

discretion in determining the appropriate course of enforcement and shall, whenever 

possible, attempt to obtain compliance through personal contact and explanation of the 

issue before resorting to issuance of a formal notice of violation. 

(b) Administrative.  The Code Enforcement Officer or designee is authorized to enforce 

provisions of this Code by initiating administrative proceedings to correct a violation. 

(1) The code enforcement officer or designee may issue a notice of violation and 

order the correction of the violation by a specified date.  The person to whom the 

notice of violation is being directed may be contacted by any means available 

including personal contact, email, social media account, telephone, posting a 

notice on the property or mailing a notice utilizing the United States Postal 

Service.  The date specified for correction of the violation shall be reasonable 

based on the nature and severity of the violation.  Violations that present an 

imminent threat to public health or safety may be ordered to be corrected within 

as short a period as several hours.  Violations that do not present an imminent 

threat to public health or safety shall be given at least 5 days to be corrected. A 

notice to the effect that daily penalties of up to $500 per day may be assessed if 

compliance is not accomplished within the time specified and that any penalty can 

be assessed against the property if unpaid. 

(2) Except for violations that present an imminent threat to public health or safety, the 

person receiving the notice of violation may contact the code enforcement officer 

or designee and request an extension of time to mitigate the violation or file a 

written appeal challenging the order citing the specific grounds for reversal or 

modification of the order.  A request for a time extension or an appeal must be 

filed with the code enforcement officer or other designated city representative 

before the date of compliance specified in the notice of violation.  In the absence 

of a timely appeal, the findings of the Code Enforcement Officer or designee 

contained in the notice of violation shall be deemed true and final. 



(3) When a request for more time to comply is received, the code enforcement officer 

or designee may either grant or deny the request for an extension of time.  Should 

the request for an extension of time be denied, the person who received the notice 

of violation may appeal to the appeals board within 15 days of the denial of a 

request for time extension. 

(4) If the violation is not corrected within the specified time, the code enforcement 

officer or designee shall issue a second notice of violation and specify that after 

the period allowed for compliance that a penalty of up to five hundred dollars 

($500.00) a day will be imposed for each day any violation is permitted to exist 

beyond the time for compliance. The code enforcement officer or designee may 

extend the time of compliance stated in the first notice of violation or state that 

daily penalties will commence on the date of issuance of the second notice of 

violation. The code enforcement officer shall also record a notice with the Morton 

County Recorder’s Office of a pending action against the property. 

(5) Failure of the person issued a notice of violation to comply within the time 

specified may result in the city, at its option, taking action to mitigate the 

violation or referring the matter to municipal court. 

(6) If the city elects to take direct action to correct the violation the person will be 

billed for the actual costs incurred by the city plus administrative overhead and a 

penalty amount equal to the per day penalty assessment.  Any bill remaining 

unpaid shall be assessed against the property in the manner used by the city for 

other unpaid bills. 

(c) Criminal. 

(1) City options.  Depending on the seriousness of the violation, the city may seek 

corrective action and penalties in any court of competent jurisdiction. 

(2) Term of violation.  Each day that a violation is allowed to continue shall 

constitute a separate violation that may be cited and prosecuted as a separate 

action before the court. 

(3) Prosecution of Criminal Violation.  At the request of the code enforcement 

officer or designee, the city prosecutor or designee shall bring action in any court 

of competent jurisdiction to charge the violator and mitigate the violation. 

(d) Civil. In addition to the authority to commence administrative proceedings for the 

purpose of imposing civil penalties, a judicial action seeking a civil penalty may be 

commenced by the City Attorney, who may also seek any other relief available to the 



City. Any judicial action for a civil penalty may seek an award for attorney's fees, costs, 

expenses and disbursements. 

Sec. 26-2-2. – Court Action 

(a) Taking any action to mitigate the violation using city resources or city contractors shall 

not preclude the city from taking any other action concurrently. 

(b) When a judgment is obtained by the City in an action for civil penalties, in addition to the 

appropriate methods of enforcement of the judgment established in the North Dakota 

Century Code and North Dakota Rules of Civil Procedure, such judgment for penalties 

shall be assessed and collected in the same manner as other unpaid bills or assessments. 

(c) The City Attorney may maintain an action in a court of competent jurisdiction to compel 

compliance with this code or to restrain by injunction the violation of this code. 

Article 3. – Modifications to notice of violation 

Sec. 26-3-1. – Time Extension 

(a) The person receiving a notice of violation may request and the code enforcement officer 

or designee may grant a time extension for compliance during the period of compliance specified 

in the first notice of violation. 

(b) Once the deadline for compliance stated in the first notice of violation or any extension 

granted by the code enforcement officer or designee has passed, no additional time extension 

may be granted unless authorized by the board of appeals after hearing an appeal. 

Sec. 26-3-2 - Appeal 

(a) Stay of enforcement.  Unless there is an imminent threat to public health or safety, 

receipt of an appeal shall stay any enforcement action by the city. 

(b) Action by code enforcement officer.  Upon receipt of an appeal, the code enforcement 

officer or designee shall forward the appeal to the chairman of the board of appeals. 

(c) Action by the board of appeals.  Upon receiving an appeal from the code enforcement 

officer or designee, the board of appeals shall schedule a hearing on the appeal.  The 

hearing shall be held and a decision rendered no later than 30 days after receipt of the 

appeal by the board of appeals.  Scheduling of the hearing shall be coordinated with the 

person filing the appeal.  If the board of appeals fails to act within 30 days, the appeal 

shall be forwarded to the board of city commissioners for action. 

Sec. 26-3-3. - Board of Appeals 



(a) Composition.  The board of appeals shall consist of three (3) or five (5) members 

appointed for 3 year terms with the initial appointments staggered so individual 

member’s terms expire in different years.  The city administrator shall recommend 

appointments to the board of appeals.  The board of city commissioners shall appoint the 

members of the board of appeals.  Members of the board of appeals shall be selected 

from people who submit applications to be appointed to the board of appeals.  Members 

of the board of appeals must be city residents and may be a member of another appointed 

board, committee or commission within city government.  Members of the board of 

appeals may not be elected officials or city employees. 

(b) Powers and Duties.  

(1) The board of appeals shall address all questions of interpretation and enforcement 

of city code arising from a notice of violation issued by the code enforcement 

officer or designee. 

(2) The board of appeals shall adopt rules necessary to the conduct of its affairs. 

(3) Meetings shall be held at the call of the chairman or acting chairman. 

(4) Meetings shall be open public meetings. 

(5) Minutes shall be kept that record all actions taken by the board of appeals.  The 

minutes shall document how each board member voted on any action taken.  The 

minutes shall be open to public inspection. 

(4) The board of appeals, at its discretion and based on the nature of the violation, 

may individually notify neighboring property owners or others of the appeal 

hearing. 

(5) The board of appeals, at its discretion, may call expert witnesses to address 

technical issues regarding the notice of violation being appealed. 

(6) The board of appeals, at its discretion, may allow neighbors or other residents of 

the city to speak at the hearing. 

(7) The person filing the appeal may have legal and technical representation at the 

hearing.  Those persons shall be allowed to speak at the hearing. 

Sec. 26-3-4. – Appeal Board Decisions Reviewable 

A decision of the board of appeals may be appealed to the board of city commissioners 

by either the aggrieved applicant or by any officer, department, or board of the city. The appeal 

must be filed with the city administrator within fifteen (15) days after notice of the decision of 

the board of appeals. The board of city commissioners shall fix a time, within thirty (30) days, 



for the hearing of the appeal and shall give due notice of the hearing to the parties. The board of 

city commissioners shall decide the appeal within a reasonable time. Any party may appear in 

person or by agent or by attorney at the hearing of the board of city commissioners on the appeal. 

The board of city commissioners may reverse the decision of the board of appeals, in whole or in 

part, or modify the order, decision, or determination appealed. 

Section 2.  Chapter 26 is enacted as presented. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Tim Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________ 

Jim Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:       July 5, 2016  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:    July 19, 2016 

Publication Date:           

 



 

 

  Page 1 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  The police department receives various items that must be retained 

for a period of time and then disposed of in conformance with state law. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  This proposed ordinance updates and consolidates 

procedures and requirements. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Ordinance 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  A draft was submitted to department directors and other senior staff for 

review and comment.  All recommended changes were incorporated in this final draft.  Staff 

recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1245 

creating and enacting Article 5, Chapter 18 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to abandoned, 

found, recovered and unclaimed property. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1245 

 

An Ordinance to Add and Enact Article 5 to Chapter 18, of the 

Mandan Municipal Code related to abandoned, found, recovered 

and unclaimed property 

 

WHEREAS, The Mandan Police Department receives numerous items in various ways, 

and 

MEETING DATE: July 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: July 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jason Zeigler, Chief 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance No. 1245 creating and 

enacting Article 5, Chapter 18 of the Mandan Municipal 

Code related to abandoned, found, recovered and 

unclaimed property 

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 2 



 

 

  Page 2 

 

WHEREAS, It is necessary to comply with state law in the retention and disposal of these 

items, and 

  

WHEREAS, Updates are needed to the language contained in the Mandan Municipal 

Code. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 

City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Article 5 of Chapter 18 is created to read. 

 

ARTICLE 5. - Abandoned, found, recovered and unclaimed property. 

 

Sec. 18-5-1. – Abandoned or unclaimed property. 

 

Abandoned or unclaimed property, excluding contraband, vehicles and firearms, shall be 

disposed of in the following manner. 

 

(1) Held for not less than 15 days before being offered for public sale or disposed of. 

 

a. Items that have a value of less than $50 may be disposed of. 

 

b. An item may be given to a city department that has use for the item. 

 

1. The department receiving the item shall take full possession of the 

item and log it into their inventory as appropriate. 

 

2. If the owner of the item appears within 6 months to lay claim to the 

item, the department receiving the item shall return it to the owner 

upon payment to the city of expenses incurred by the city in 

acquiring, storing and disposing of the item. 

 

c. Items that have a value of $50 or more that have not been transferred to a 

department under subsection b. shall be offered for sale. 

 

(2) Sale shall be either by local auction administered by the city or a contract agent or 

by an on-line auction administered by an on-line auction company. 

 

(3) Notice of sale giving time, place and contact information shall be published in a 

newspaper of general circulation in the city at least ten days prior to sale.  Notice 

of the sale may also be posted on the city’s web site. 

 

(4) Proceeds of sale shall be deposited in the general fund and an itemized record 

kept by the city finance director for 6 months of items sold and the value received. 

 

(5) If the owner of an item sold at auction appears within 6 months of the date of the 

auction and presents proof of ownership acceptable to the city, the city shall pay 



 

 

  Page 3 

to the owner the proceeds of the sale less any expenses incurred by the city in 

acquiring, storing and disposing of the item. 

 

(6) Should an item offered for sale not be sold, it may be donated by the city to any 

appropriate entity. 

 

Sec. 18-5-2. – Fair treatment standards for victims and witnesses. 

 

The city shall follow the provisions of NDCC 12.1-34-02 (9). 

 

Sec. 18-5-3. – Return of recovered stolen or embezzled property. 

 

The return of recovered stolen property that has entered the court system shall be 

governed by the requirements of NDCC 29-01-20 through 29-01-23. 

 

Sec. 18-5-4. – Forfeiture of dangerous weapon or firearm by person arrested and convicted 

of crime. 

 

In conformance with the provisions of NDCC 62.1-01-02, a dangerous weapon or firearm 

may be seized and disposed of by the city. 

 

Sec. 18-5-5. – Finder-Depositary for hire - Assumption of ownership by finder. 

 

A person who finds lost property or money and turns it in to the city may claim the 

property or money after it has been held by the city for 30 days and no one has appeared to 

provide suitable evidence of ownership.  Should the person who turned in the property not return 

to claim it, the property shall be disposed of as provided in Sec. 18-5-1. 

 

Sec. 18-5-6. – Compensation and reward to finder. 

 

As set forth in NDCC 60-01-37, a person who finds and preserves lost property is entitled 

to compensation if the owner subsequently appears to claim the item. 

 

Sec. 18-5-7. – Abandoned motor vehicle. 

 

Abandoned motor vehicles shall be disposed of in conformance with the requirements of 

NDCC 39-26, except as noted below. 

 

(1) An abandoned motor vehicle may be disposed in the manner described in Sec. 18-

5-1. 

 

(2) Once the city has reimbursed itself from the proceeds of the sale of an abandoned 

motor vehicle for expenses incurred in the towing, preserving or storing of the 

abandoned motor vehicle and expenses incurred in the issuance of notices or 

publication of notices in a newspaper of general circulation for the sale of the 

abandoned motor vehicle, any remaining amounts shall be deposited in the city’s 

general fund. 

 



 

 

  Page 4 

Sec. 18-5-8. – Immediate ticketing and towing. 

 

Nothing in this section shall prevent the city from immediately ticketing and towing a 

vehicle that is found to be blocking a public street travel lane, a private driveway, a fire hydrant 

or a fire lane. 

 

Section 2.  Article 5, Chapter 18 is enacted as presented. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Tim Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________ 

Jim Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:       ______________ 

Second Consideration and Final Passage:    ______________ 

Publication Date:       ______________ 

 



 
SUGGESTED ACTION:  Move to approve second consideration of Ordinance 1246 

rezoning Lot 3, Block 1 Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3
rd

 Addition. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1246 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF THE 

MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 

AND ZONING MAP. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

The following described property located within the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota shall be excluded from the CC Restricted zoning district (no 

railroad trackage, auto laundry, auto repair as a primary use, commercial parking 

lot/garage, off-premise advertising sign, steam bath, tire/battery repair, storage 

building/warehouse or any of the wholesale group) and shall be included in the CC 

zoning district: 

 

Lot 3, Block 1, Sylvester’s Industrial Park 3rd Addition in Section 31, 

Township 139N, Range 80W in the City of Mandan, Morton County, 

North Dakota 

 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of 

Ordinances is hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and 

directed to make the necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in 

accordance with this section.   

 

         

Tim Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                       

Jim Neubauer 

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:    June 27, 2016 

First Consideration:    July 5, 2016 

Second Consideration and Final Approval:      

Recording Date:         

 

 

Resolutions and Ordinances No. 3 



 

 

  Page 1 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:  Move to approve the second consideration of Ordinance No. 1247 

amending and reenacting Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 

related to juvenile curfew. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1247 

 

An Ordinance to Amend and Reenact Sections 18-2-2 through 18-

2-5 of the Mandan Municipal Code Related to Juvenile Curfew 

 

Be it ordained by the Board of City Commissioners: 

 

An Ordinance to amend and reenact Sections 18-2-2 through 18-2-5 of the Mandan 

Municipal Code related to juvenile curfew is hereby enacted as follows: 

 
Sec. 18-2-2. - Curfew hours.  

(a) It is unlawful for persons 14 years of age or less to loiter, idle, wander, stroll, play in or upon, or drive or ride 

about in a vehicle or be in or upon, the public streets, highways, roads, alleys, or public buildings, places or 

grounds between the hours of 10:30 p.m. and 5:00 a.m.  

(b) It is unlawful for persons 15 years of age to loiter, idle, wander, stroll, play in or upon, or drive or ride about in 

a vehicle or be in or upon, the public streets, highways, roads, alleys, or public buildings, places or grounds 

between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 5:00 a.m.  

(c) It is unlawful for a person at least 16 years of age but not yet 18 years of age to loiter, idle, wander, stroll, play 

in or upon, or drive or ride about in a vehicle or be in or upon, the public streets, highways, roads, alleys or 

public buildings, places or grounds between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 5:00 a.m.  

(d) A violation of this section is an infraction. Each violation of this section shall constitute a separate violation.  

(e) Any minor who violates any of the provisions of this section shall be subject to arrest by any police officer 

without process.  

Sec. 18-2-3. - Defense to prosecution.  

(a) It is a defense to prosecution that the minor was: 

(1) Accompanied by the minor's parent or guardian; 

(2) On an errand at the direction of the minor's parent or guardian without any detour or stop;  

(3) In a motor vehicle involved in interstate travel; 

(4) Engaged in an employment activity, or going to or returning home from an employment activity, 

without any detour or stop;  

(5) Involved in an emergency; 

(6) On the sidewalk abutting the minor's residence or abutting the residence of a next-door neighbor if 

the neighbor did not complain to the police department about the minor's presence, except that this 

defense does not apply to a violation of the curfew hours;  

(7) Attending an official school, religious, or other recreational activity supervised by adults and 

sponsored by the city, a civic organization, or another similar entity that takes responsibility for the 

minor, or going to or returning home from, without any detour or stop, an official school, religious, 

or other recreational activity supervised by adults and sponsored by the city, a civic organization, or 

another similar entity that takes responsibility for the minor;  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 4 



 

 

  Page 2 

(8) Exercising First Amendment rights protected by the United States Constitution, such as the free 

exercise of religion, freedom of speech, and the right of assembly; or  

(9) Married or had been married, or had disabilities of minority removed in accordance with law.  

(b) It is a defense to prosecution that the owner, operator, or employee of an establishment promptly notified the 

police department that a minor was present on the premises of the establishment during curfew hours and 

refused to leave.  

Sec. 18-2-4. - Responsibility of parents and persons owning or managing public places or 

businesses.  

No parent, guardian or other adult having the care and custody of a minor shall knowingly permit such 

minor to be abroad, loiter, idle, wander, stroll or play in or upon the public streets, highways, roads, 

alleys, parks, playgrounds, or other public grounds, public places and public buildings, places of 

amusement and entertainment, vacant lots, or any retail or wholesale business establishment, during the 

curfew hours, provided that the provisions of this section do not apply when the juvenile is accompanied 

by his parent, guardian or other adult having the care and custody of the minor. Each violation of the 

provisions of this section shall constitute a separate offense.  
 

 

  

By:___________________________ 

Tim Helbling, President 

Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:      July 5, 2016   

Second Consideration and Final Passage:       

Publication Date:          

 

 

 


	Agenda July 19, 2016
	Minutes July 5, 2016
	Replat of Lots 10 & 11, Blk. 1, Keidel's South Heart Terrace Second Addition
	We Got Hope games of chance at The Drink from Aug. 1 - Oct. 1, 2016
	Pledge of Securities Reports
	PD Transfer of funds in 2016 Budget 
	Fire Station 3 Architectural Service Contract
	Young Professionals Network (YPN) request regarding expansion of Mandan's Longfellow Veteran's Park
	Lower Heart Water Resource District Update on Levee System
	Community Beautification Committee (CBC) recommendations regarding advertising benches in downtown area
	MGF Recommendation - HB Properties application
	MGF Recommendation - Restaurant Rewards Update Explanation
	MGF Restaurant Rewards Program Overview - Proposed Updates
	Revised Expedited Emergency fix for segment of sanitary sewer - 40th Ave. & 24th St. SE
	Expedited Emergency fix for segment of sanitary sewer - 40th Ave. & 24th St. SE
	Ord. 1248 - Related to code enforcement
	Ord. 1245 - Related to abandoned, found, recovered and unclaimed property
	Ord. 1246 - Rezoning Lot 3, Blk. 1 Sylvester's Industrial Park 3rd Addn.
	Ord. 1247 - Related to Juvenile Curfew



